
Please ask for  Helen McAleer DDI (01362) 656381 
e-mail: helen.mcaleer@breckland.gov.uk 

 
AGENDA 

 

NOTE: In the case of non-members, this agenda is for information only 

 
 
 

Committee - BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT SUB-COMMITTEE 

Date & Time - Tuesday, 2nd November, 2010 at 9.30 am 

Venue - Norfolk Room, The Conference Suite, Elizabeth 
House, Dereham 

 
 

 

Members of the Sub-Committee requiring further information, or with specific 
questions, are asked to raise these with the appropriate officer at least two 

working days before the meeting.  If the information requested is available, this 
will be provided, and reported to the Sub-Committee. 

 
 

Members of the Sub-Committee 
  
Mr W.H.C. Smith (Chairman) 
Mr P.D. Claussen 
 

Lady Fisher 
 

 

 
 
 

PERSONS ATTENDING THE MPERSONS ATTENDING THE MPERSONS ATTENDING THE MPERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING ARE EETING ARE EETING ARE EETING ARE 

REQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE TELEPHONESREQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE TELEPHONESREQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE TELEPHONESREQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE TELEPHONES    

Member Services  
Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, 
Dereham Norfolk, NR19 1EE 
 

 

Date: Friday, 22 October 2010  
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



Business Improvement Sub-Committee 
02 November 2010 

 

 

 

PART A - ITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 

 

 Page(s) 
herewith 

1. MINUTES  1 - 6 

 To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 5 October 2010. 
  

 

2. APOLOGIES   

 To receive any apologies for absence.    
 

 

3. URGENT BUSINESS   

 To consider any urgent business.   
 

 

4. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   

 Members are asked at this stage to declare any interests they may have in 
any of the following items on the agenda. The Members’ Code of Conduct 
requires that declarations include the nature of the interest and whether it is a 
personal or prejudicial interest.  
 

 

5. NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING   

 To note the names of any non-members who wish to address the meeting.  
 

 

6. UPDATE ON IT SERVICES CONTRACT  To Follow 

 Report of the Head of ICT.  
 

 

7. IMPLEMENTATION AND FORMALISATION OF NEW PROJECTS 
REQUIRING APPROVAL FROM BISC  

7 - 16 

 Report of the Director of Corporate Resources. 
  

 

8. PROJECT PROGRESS   

a) Licensing and Business Support 
 

17 - 20 

9. SERVICE PERFORMANCE  To Follow 

 Update by the Head of ICT / Steria.  
 

 

10. PROJECT APPLICATIONS   

a) Video Conferencing 
 

To Follow 

b) Committee Suite Equipment 
 

To Follow 



Business Improvement Sub-Committee 
01 November 2010 

 
 
 Page(s) 

herewith 

 

11. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC   

 To consider passing the following resolution: 
 
“That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972 the press and 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on 
the grounds that they involve the disclosure of exempt information as defined 
in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act”. 
 

PART B – ITEMS FROM WHICH THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE 
EXCLUDED  

  

 

12. GOV CONNECT PHASE 3  To Follow 

13. NEXT MEETING   

 To note the arrangements for the next meeting on 7 December 2010. 
  
 

 

 



 
 
 

 

1 

BRECKLAND COUNCIL 
 

At a Meeting of the 
 

BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

Held on Tuesday, 5 October 2010 at 9.30 am in 
Norfolk Room, The Conference Suite, Elizabeth House, Dereham 

 
PRESENT  
Mr W.H.C. Smith (Chairman) 
 

Lady Fisher 
 

 
Also Present  
Mr P.J. Duigan   

 
In Attendance  
Margaret Bailey - Senior Accountant Capital and Treasury 
Adam Colby - Senior Business Improvement Officer 
Mark Finch - Head of Finance 
Stephen James - Policy and Performance Manager 
Kevin Rump - ICT Project Manager 
Helen McAleer - Senior Committee Officer 
Maxine O'Mahony - Director of Organisational Development 

 
 Action By 

 

87/10 MINUTES   

  

 The following points were noted: 
 

Minute No 72/10 – discussions regarding the provision of a 
generator were on-going.  The Chairman requested that the 
District Emergency Planning Manager be invited to the next 
meeting to provide an update. 
 
Minute No 74/10(a) – the launch of the new website had been 
postponed until the end of October as the data-cleanse was taking 
longer than expected.  There were also two outstanding technical 
issues to be resolved but they were not expected to cause further 
delays. 
 
Minute No 74/10(b) – a conversation took place about asset 
ownership and how on going support would work and access to 
assets that Breckland might not own. 
 
Minute No 86/10 – Lady Fisher was keen that the tender 
document should be revised to meet requirements and to align 
with the Council’s plans for the future.  The ICT Project Manager 
advised that due to the value of the project it would not require a 
tender process, but that a workshop had been arranged to work 
out the details of the requirements and a progress update would 
be provided to the next meeting. 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 31 August 2010 were confirmed as a 
correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

 
 
 
 
Teresa 
Cannon  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Kevin J 
Taylor 

Agenda Item 1

1



Business Improvement Sub-Committee 
5 October 2010 

 
 

2 

 Action By 

 
88/10 APOLOGIES   

  

 Apologies for absence had been received from Mr P Claussen. 
  

 

89/10 URGENT BUSINESS   

  

 There was no urgent business.  However, the Chairman noted that the 
Sub-Committee had been set up to be more business improvement 
orientated and he asked Officers to come up with proposals to give effect 
to that intention as he considered that the Sub-Committee was still too 
ICT focussed.  
  

 

90/10 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   

  

 There were none. 
  

 

91/10 NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING   

  

 Mr P Duigan was in attendance. 
  

 

92/10 ICT SERVICE INSOURCING   

  

 The ICT Project Manager advised Members that the first meeting had 
taken place with Steria staff and they were all aware of TUPE 
arrangements. 
 
The Helpdesk component had been discussed and the Senior Business 
Improvement Officer was looking into the possibility of using Lagan to 
provide this facility. 
 
Steria had provided an exit plan and their staff seemed to be more at 
ease, now that they knew the Council’s plans. 
 
The Chairman asked if all the Steria staff would move across under the 
TUPE arrangements and was advised that Breckland would be required 
to follow TUPE regulations and the legal position was being checked but, 
the Council would maintain the resilience it required. 
  

 

93/10 OCELLA CONSULTANCY DAYS   

  

 The Chairman advised that although he was unable to attend the meeting 
the Executive Member for Planning, Health and Housing was keen for this 
item to be approved. 
 
The ICT Project Manager explained that he had previously purchased 12 
consultancy days from Ocella for IT purposes. These had worked very 
well and had all been used. 
 
The report sought approval to release 50% of the money required to 
undertake additional development work to meet new legislative 
obligations.  As this work would also benefit Capita Symonds, they had 
agreed to provide 50% of the costs. 
 
Members were concerned that approval of this expenditure would set a 
precedent.  There might be other, unexpected items that would require 

 

2



Business Improvement Sub-Committee 
5 October 2010 

 
 

3 

 Action By 

 
additional expenditure and these items were not included in the budget.  
 
The Policy and Performance Manager explained that this request had 
arisen due to a change in legislation which was beyond the control of the 
Council.  The Ocella system remained in the Council’s ownership and 
therefore it retained the risk associated with controlling the system. 
 
The Director of Corporate Resources asked what other costs might arise 
over the 15 years of the contract and it was agreed that it was necessary 
to monitor the situation to keep track of issues that had not formed part of 
the original Business Case. 
 
It was agreed that the money should be released on a without prejudice 
basis, which did not set a precedent.  Future requests would be 
considered individually.   
 
The Head of Finance advised that as there was no money in the ICT or 
Planning budgets the decision would need to be made by Cabinet.  The 
Proforma B identified funds in the Organisational Development reserve 
which could be used. 
 

RECOMMEND TO CABINET that £7,437.50 be released from the 
Organisational Development reserve to deliver the required 
development works needed for the Ocella system. 

  
94/10 ARP/ICT SUPPORT PROVISION   

  

 Discussions were on-going between Breckland and Forest Heath. 
  

 

95/10 PROJECT APPLICATIONS (STANDING ITEM)   

  

 a) ICT Refresh  (Item 14 on Agenda Supplement) 
 

The Proforma B was tabled. 
 
The Head of Finance was invited to join the meeting to clarify the 
terms of the proposed procurement. 
 
The ICT Project Manager presented the report which sought the 
release of £89,000 from the 2010/11 refresh budget to upgrade 
key hardware at the Thetford site to provide greater supportability, 
resilience and growth for the ARP. 
 
The Chairman asked the Head of Finance to explain this 
procurement and also to inform Members about the possibility of 
obtaining RIEP funding towards these costs. 
 
The Head of Finance explained that as Forest Heath already had 
the funding approved they would procure the hardware for the 
project to allow Breckland and East Cambs to obtain release of 
funds to contribute to the costs in proportion to the partnership 
share.  This meant that the ownership of the asset would appear 
on Forest Heath’s balance sheet, although the other partners 
would use it under the partnership agreement, and Breckland 
would continue to support it.   

 

3



Business Improvement Sub-Committee 
5 October 2010 

 
 

4 

 Action By 

 
 
He added that he had been in discussion with Improvement East 
and he had been advised that a bid for funding was unlikely to be 
successful as the ARP was already a well established partnership 
that should be able to fund its ICT refresh itself.  He therefore 
advised that it would not be a good use of resource to prepare a 
bid. 
 
It was confirmed that: 
 
a) the remaining £106,164 was sufficient to meet the 

remaining 2010/11 refresh requirements; and 
b) that detailed costing to identify the exact budget required, 

with any changes to the released amount, would be 
reported back to the Business Improvement Sub-
Committee. 

 
The Chairman sought assurance that the money for the Members’ 
refresh was still available.  The existing equipment was seven 
years old and would need replacing after the next elections.  He 
had asked the Chairmen of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Commission and the Audit Committee to set up a joint panel to 
look into this matter, to ensure a transparent process and to inform 
the public of the advantages and improvements that the new 
equipment would provide. 

 
RESOLVED to release £89,000 to procure a VMware solution for 
Thetford/ARP, allowing migration of data and application prior to 
year end, and also provide the ability for growth. 

 
b) Upgrade of LAGAN Software for Customer Contact Centre (Item 

15 on Agenda Supplement) 
 

Lagan version 6 was currently used by the Council.  This version 
would not be fully supported from 2011.  The ICT Project Manager 
presented the report which sought the release of £30,000 to 
upgrade Lagan to version 8. 
 
The Senior Business Improvement Officer pointed out that it was 
not just the Call Centre that used Lagan; there were about 190 
users in the Council.  It was also linked to the existing telephony 
system which was to be replaced.   
 
The latest version of Lagan could also provide an ICT Service 
desk to replace the current Steria Helpdesk, at negligible cost. 
 
The Policy and Performance Manager checked if the risk of longer 
call lengths, due to the Lagan upgrade, had been considered, as 
this may have an impact on current call Centre performance 
should it occur.  It was advised that the likelihood of this 
happening was low. 
 
The Chairman asked if the update to the telephony system would 
take place at the same time and the ICT Project Manager advised 
that although that was achievable it would be easier if the Lagan 

4



Business Improvement Sub-Committee 
5 October 2010 

 
 

5 

 Action By 

 
upgrade happened first.  The telephony project would have to take 
account of the upgrade to ensure compatibility.   
 
Lady Fisher reiterated that the telephony procurement must be in 
line with the Council’s future proposals. 
 
The Senior Accountant Capital and Treasury clarified that the 
amount requested (£30,000) did not include the £3,500 required to 
deliver the IT service desk, and did not form part of the current 
funding request. 

 
RESOLVED to release the £30,000 to support the Lagan upgrade. 

  
96/10 PROJECT PROGRESS   

  

 The ICT Project Manager advised that there were several projects 
progressing.   
 
A current item to note was the Lalpac system which would shortly be 
tested to provide an external link enabling mobile working.  The Licensing 
project had gone very well and Lalpac were seeking assistance to 
develop the mobile working module.   
 
Other projects currently in progress were VM/Sanware, video 
conferencing, CR2000 and Gov Connect.   
 
A full report on these would be made to the next meeting.  
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Kevin 
Rump  

97/10 SERVICE PERFORMANCE   

  

 Nothing to report. 
  

 

98/10 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE   

  

 The Senior Accountant Capital and Treasury explained that currently the 
budget report focussed just on IT.  In future, information about revenue 
budgets and progress against efficiency targets would be included. 
 
The Head of Finance said that the Head of ICT had provided a much 
more detailed breakdown and they were now assured that target savings 
could be made. 
 
The ICT Project Manager advised that he might wish to access funding to 
meet the requirements of the next phase of the Gov Connect project.   
 
He was also awaiting quotes from suppliers in connection with the video 
conferencing project.  There was a possibility that some funding for this 
might be available from RIEP. 
 
The Head of Finance agreed and said that his discussions with 
Improvement East had indicated a much more favourable outcome for 
this project and so a bid would be put forward. 
 
The report was noted. 
  

 

5



Business Improvement Sub-Committee 
5 October 2010 

 
 

6 

 Action By 

 
99/10 NEXT MEETING   

  

 The arrangements for the next meeting on Tuesday 2 November 2010 
were noted. 
  

 

 
 
The meeting closed at 10.55 am 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 

6



BRECKLAND COUNCIL 
 
Report to the Director of Corporate Services – Maxine O’Mahony 
 
Implementation and Formalisation of New Projects Requiring Approval from BISC 
 

1. Purpose of Report 

1.1 This report seeks the Business Improvement Sub Committee’s approval of the 
recommendations to adopt a standardised application process and form for all 
requests for new projects and funding enabling the committee to make informed 
decisions in line with business needs and benefits.  

 

2. Recommendation(s) 
 

 It is recommended that with effect from the next sub committee (2nd November) that: 
2.1 The Business Improvement Sub Committee approves the BISC application form for 

new projects and funding through the Business Improvement Sub Committee (option3) 
2.2 The Business Improvement Sub Committee approves the new process for issuance, 

circulation and evaluation of applications by the Business Improvement Team in 
preparation for forthcoming Business Improvement Sub Committees (option 3). 

2.3 The Business Improvement Sub-Committee embed and embrace the new process for 
the acceptance and approval for all new and future projects and funding (option 3). 

 
Note:  In preparing this report, due regard has been had to equality of opportunity, 
human rights, prevention of crime and disorder, environmental and risk management 
considerations as appropriate.  Relevant officers have been consulted in relation to any 
legal, financial or human resources implications and comments received are reflected in 
the report. 
 

3. Information, Issues and Options 

3.1 Background 

3.1.1 The Business Improvement Sub Committee has the ability to approve and release 
funding for Breckland Council projects and programmes to maintain or improve 
services using IT as a key enabler.  

3.1.2 Currently the committee receives reports in varying manners either verbally, 
committee template report or a BI ICT application. The reports rarely address key 
questions relating to the business. 

3.1.3 To ensure the committee makes an informed decision about future projects and 
programmes, this report seeks to formalise and adopt the BISC Application process 
as standard for all new projects and programmes requesting funding, prioritisation 
and resource planning. The process will be centrally administered through the 
Business Improvement Team. 

3.1.4 The process aims to challenge the applicant with a series of key questions focusing 
on the business needs, risk, ease to achieve, value and the corporate business plan. 
Once completed it is circulated with key stakeholders including ICT, Business 
Improvement, Finance, Performance, Procurement and Customer for their views and 
guidance on the application before being presented to Business Improvement Sub 
Committee to make a formal decision: 

• Rejection: reject the application 

• Request for further information at the next Business Improvement Sub Committee 

• Approve the application subject to returning to the sub committee with a business 
case*, Project Initiation Document* , summary report and Proforma-B (*When required) 

Agenda Item 7

7



• Approve the application and release funding subject to the relevant documents 
complete and presented 

Monitor and evaluate the progress of the project until such a time it is successfully 
delivered and the benefits realised. 

New applications must be received and circulated as part of the agenda pack in 
order to give members and attendees the time to review the application and prepare 
comments within the deadlines set out. 

3.2 Issues 

3.2.2 There are a number of issues with the current process and format that the sub 
committee receives requests seeking approval for funding.  

• Inconsistency: Reports are received in differing formats and do not always address 
key questions. In some instances some requests for funding or projects have been 
approved without the application which was introduced in 2009. This process will 
standardise all requests for funding and new projects through the committee. 

• Non realisation of benefits: There are few projects that the committee monitor until 
delivered or the benefits realised. This process will monitor projects until such a time 
as delivered and benefits realised. 

• Alignment to business needs:  Projects and investments should be evaluated 
against Council priorities and business needs in order to prioritise and demonstrate 
value for money. This process will evaluate all processes against Council priorities, 
business benefits, risk, legislation and ease to achieve to demonstrate value for 
money and alignment of projects and funding against Council priorities. 

• Stakeholder input: Rarely stakeholders are available to input unless present at the 
committee. This allows full representation prior to the forthcoming board and 
comments to be distributed as part of the agenda pack. 

• Standardised questions: There are no standardised questions or points unless 
raised Adhoc at the meeting. All applicants will be asked to address the same points 
ensuring that a fair evaluation can take place and the committee can make an 
informed decision.  

3.2.3 The change and streamlining of this process, plus an evaluation will ensure all 
projects and funding requests through the Business Improvement Sub Committee 
are treated fairly and exposed to the same evaluation. This will enable managers and 
members to make informed decisions but also ensure there is accountability for 
applicants to deliver the solution and realise any associated benefits through the 
monitoring of delivery. 

3.3 Options 

Option 1 : Do nothing 

• Retain the current mix of reports and pro-forma B’s for new projects and programmes 
with the lack of consistency and, in some cases, information and justification. 

Option 2: Revert to the former process of committee report  templates 

• Use the standard committee services template which does not challenge the 
applicant on key business needs and impact which could result in an uninformed 
decision being made and non invitation to comment from key stakeholders. 

Option 3: Formalise the BISC application process and forms and embed within the 
Business Improvement Sub Committee 

• Only accept the BISC application form for new projects and funding through the 
Business Improvement Sub Committee. 

• Adopt a new process for issuance, circulation and evaluation of applications by the 
Business Improvement Team in preparation for forthcoming Business Improvement 

8



Sub Committees. 

• Embed and embrace a new process for the acceptance and approval for all new and 
future projects and funding.   

3.4 Reasons for Recommendation(s) 

3.4.1 The Business Improvement Sub Committee needs to focus on Business 
Improvement initiatives utilising ICT as an enabler rather than a driver  to 
demonstrate value for money and to be able to make an informed decision based on 
the format and content of the information presented. 

3.4.2 Projects and funding released should be held accountable by the service requesting 
the project/funding approval. The committee should monitor projects and funding until 
delivered and the benefits realised to demonstrate value for money. 

3.4.3 It will create a strong governance framework around the application, evaluation, 
approval, prioritisation and monitoring for all new projects and funding for ICT or 
Business Improvement initiatives. 

3.4.4  It will ensure all projects and funding is prioritised inline with Council priorities, 
business needs and associated benefits and consider the impact on the workforce 
and current projects. 

4. Risk and Financial Implications 

4.1 Risk  

4.1.1 Adopting and embedding these processes for new projects and funding will ensure 
that the applicant assesses the risks as a result of undertaking/not undertaking the 
project.  

4.1.2 Through creation of the correct project documents, the risks associated to the project 
delivery should be captured and the mechanism in place to mitigate these. 

4.2 Financial  

4.2.1 There are no financial risks however it does allow the council to demonstrate value 
for money in the selection of its projects and allocation of funding. It also allows for 
projects to be monitored and benefits tracked. 

5. Legal Implications 

5.1 None 

6. Other Implications    

a) Equalities: Equalities has no effect on this report. 

b) Section 17, Crime & Disorder Act 1998:  

c) Section 40, Natural Environment & Rural Communities Act 2006:  

d) Human Rights:   

e) Other:  [e.g. Children’s Act 2004] 

 
Lead Contact Officer: 
Name/Post Adam Colby Snr Business Improvement Officer:  
Telephone: 01362 656881 
Email: Adam.Colby@Breckland.gov.uk 

9



 

 
 

   
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Application Form  
 
 

For New Projects and Funding 
 Through the Business Improvement Sub-Committee 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Document: New Projects and Funding  
Issue Date: 08/10/2010  
Version: Final  
Version Number: 5.0  

 

 

10



APPLICATION FORM     BISC New Projects and Funding 

 

 
New Project Name:  

Project Type:  

Supplier (if applicable):  

Proposed Use:  

Funding Source:  

 
Document Author:  

Author Contact Tel No:  

Author’s Position Held:  

Service:  

Date Submitted:  

If you require help with completing this application form please refer to the 
guidelines at the end of the document.  

 

Please also refer to the Policy for  ICT or BI Projects. 
(Also found at the end of this Document)

11



 

Section A - Use 
Please describe what it is you are applying for? 

A.1 
 

What business problems and opportunities are addressed by the proposed project? 
A.2 

 

Who will be using the systems and/or new processes and at which location? 
A.3 

 

What are the likely or possible changes in working practices, which will result from the 
introduction of the proposed system/process? 

A.4 

 

Section B – High Level Benefit Analysis 
Please list any expected benefits, particularly those with productivity, efficiency and 
cashable gains. 

B.1 

 

Please list any expected benefits, particularly those with improvements in accessing 
information for customers, staff, stakeholders, and members. 

B.2 

 

How does the project deliver improved monitoring for performance (e.g. National 
Indicators) 

B.3 

 

Section C – Relationship to the Corporate Business Plan 
Please list and define known relationships to Corporate Business Plan/LAA.  

C.1 
 

Section D – Risk Assessment 
How will the system enable better management of risks identified in the Council’s Risk 
Register?  Please provide comprehensive list. 

D.1 

 

How will additional risks introduced during or after the project be managed? 
D.2 

 

What is the risk of doing nothing? 
D.3 

 

Section E – Other Reference Sites 

12



 

What other reference site is the system/process currently in use?  Please provide a list 
of references and contact details (e.g.: names, telephone numbers and/or e-mail 
addresses). E.1 

 

Section F – Alternatives Investigated 

What alternatives have been considered in reaching this recommendation? Please list. 

F.1 

 

Please explain for each option why these are not the preferred solutions? 

F.2 
 

Has consideration been given to the underlying service processes before considering 
an ICT solution? Please explain giving detail. 

F.3 

 

Section G – Costs & Support 
Please give an indication of expected overall project costs (capital & revenue)? 

G.1 
 

Please indicate the expected source of funding? (e.g. Corporate, Service, ICT)  
G.2 

 

Who will provide annual maintenance and support? 
G.3 

 

Will Steria be required to provide support for the project and the ongoing support? 
G.4 

 

Please indicate how you intend to resource the project? 
G.5 

 

Please indicate who will be sponsoring the project? 
G.6 

 

Will the project impact on any other Service? Explain how?  
G.7 

 

Section H – Impact on External Parties 
Please provide details on any potential impact on external agencies & partners which 
the new process/system is likely to affect.  

H.1 

 

Please indicate where the project is required due to Government targets or Legal 
obligation? If yes, how and what are the timescales for compliance? 

H.2 

 

13



 

Section I – Training 
Please provide any training/skills transfer information? 

I.1 
 

Please explain how training will impact your current operation and workload. 
I.2 

 

 

Note: Sections J,K to be completed by BIT. 

Section J - Scoring 
Project Score Programme Rank 

J.1 
  

Section K – Comments 
ICT 

K.1 
 

Steria 
K.2 

 

Business Improvement Team 
K.3 

 

Performance & Value for Money 
K.4 

 

Finance & Procurement 
K.5 

 

Service Manager (if not the applicant) K.6 

 

Internal Checks 
 Ref:  

1 Completed Form  

2 Service Manager Approval  

3 ICT Checked  

4 Steria Checked  

5 BIT Checked  

6 Performance & Value for Money Check  

7 Finance Checked  

8 Service Manager Checked  

9 Application Verified  

14



 

Policy for New Projects and Funding for BI or ICT  

In order for an “idea” to become a resourced approved Project it will need to follow the steps below.  
This Application Form is step 1 only.  
 
- Staff wishing to obtain funding or seek approval for either new ICT systems, upgrades or 

replacements or Business Solutions must make a written application, using this application form, to 
the Chairman of the Business Improvement Sub-Committee Board. 

- The completed application must be based on sound evidence, giving full details.  
- The application must be supported by the Portfolio Holder and Head of Service. 
- Any incomplete application will be rejected 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Documents Completed 
 
BISC Application 
Cover Report 
Business Case and Options* 
PID* 
Pro-forma B* 

Submit to 
BIT@breckland.gov.uk 

Finance 

Procurement 

Performance 

Customer 
Services 

ICT 

BIT 

Submit to 
BIT@breckland.gov.uk 

Reviewed at 
BISC 

Approve 

Reject 

Ongoing monitoring until benefits 
realised 

New Request 

Complete 

Approved in 
principal subject 
to completion of * 

Request further 
information 

Representation made by key stakeholders 

15



 

 

Application Forms are required for: 
- New software/hardware, including those provided initially at “no cost” 
- Replacement software/hardware (including any upgrades) 
- Integration and interfacing 
- Significant increases in software support expenditure 
- Strategic Service Reviews/End to End Business Process Re-engineering 
- Business Process Improvements 
 
The Business Improvement Board will consider the application, employing external expert advisers 
where necessary, and make one of the following recommendations: 
- Further investigation and research required 
- Reject application 
- Accept Application  
- Accept Application subject to completion of a Business Case*, Project Initiation Document*,  

Options Analysis*, Proforma B and report.  
 
* Where required 

 

The ultimate decision on the introduction of new projects involving ICT and/or Business Improvement 
will rest with the Business Improvement Sub Committee.. 

The introduction of service review/project must be monitored and audited against an agreed protocol 
and regular audit reports must be made available to the Board to ensure the expected benefits of the 
investment are realised. 

 

Guidelines for Form Completion 

Before passing the application for approval, please be sure to: 

1) Complete all sections.  This will ensure that all relevant information is available so that an early 
decision can be made. Incomplete sections may result in the application being refused or 
returned. 

2) The applicant must be accompanied with a report detailing the options (1, Do nothing, 2, Do 
something, 3, Do everything) and when applicable, sub options, the business case and 
recommendation. 

3) Attach any supporting evidence which the Business Improvement Board should take into account. 

4) Ask your finance representative to calculate the impact on the budget of your own and any other 
Service.   

5) Obtain the approval of your Service Manager and Director. 

6) Send the completed application (as an e-mail attachment only) to the following recipient 
BIT@breckland.gov.uk 

7) When required, you should be prepared to brief a representative on the Board in order to support 
the application and answer questions. You may be required to attend meetings in person. 

8) All applications, reports and supporting information must be received and circulated before the 
agenda deadline. 

 

16



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Business Improvement Programme 
 

Progress Update: 5 

 
Licensing and Business Support 

 
(October 2010) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Document: Licensing and Business Support: 
Business Improvement Programme Update 
Issue Date: 17

th
 October 2010 

Version: 1.0 Final  
Version Number: 1.0 Final 
Author: Adam Colby 

 

Agenda Item 8a

17



1 Background 

1.1. Work Stream Summary 

The table below details the seven streams of work supporting the transformation of the 
Licensing and Business Support service. 

 

Front Office 
Optimisation 

The front office optimisation stream will enable customers to access the 
Licensing service through the internet, the Contact Centre and the five 
Customer Service Centres through effective redesign of processes and 
using the Council’s CRM and LAGAN. This stream will be fundamental in 
taking on processes to release capacity in the Licensing team 

Back Office 
Process 
Improvements 

The back office stream will look at the remaining processes in the back 
office and how these can be developed alongside new ICT platforms. This 
stream seeks to enhance how the team undertake the processing of 
licence applications, the processes surrounding enforcement and 
identifying areas where services in the Council can work closer to provide 
a joined up service. 

ICT Platforms 
and Enablers 

The Licensing service currently lacks a suitable ICT system platform to 
enable the team to deliver its mandatory activities. This stream 
concentrates on initiating new ICT platforms but also taking this further 
with the delivery of a mobile working solution, e-consultation and self 
service. 

Business 
Support Team 
Re-alignment 

The Business Support Team works strategically across the Environmental 
Health department providing administrative support. This stream will look 
at how this resource can be best used to serve the Council and its 
residents by providing value outcomes. There will be changes in roles and 
responsibilities which will be key to enabling the new Licensing service 
provision and enabling Environmental Health to work pro-actively. 

Partnership 
Working and 
Income 
Generation 

The Licensing team works with a number of external bodies. Some of 
these are consultees under the Licensing Act; others are around 
enforcement and proactive activities. This stream looks to enhance this 
partnership further but also investigate possibilities of working with shared 
services with other local authorities and taking forward opportunities to 
generate further income to enable the service to operate with a balanced 
budget. 

Financial 
Management 

The financial management stream will support the programme and the 
streams throughout the implementation and review period. This stream 
will be actively involved in understanding current budgets, the re-
alignment of budgets, working towards Licensing operating with a 
balanced budget and the realisations of cashable savings. 

Organisation 
Development 

This stream will support the recommendations and decisions made 
through policies and processes surrounding creation and deletion of posts 
and mobile working. 

 

1.2. Work Stream Progress 

The information given below provides an overview of the current status of the Licensing and 
Environmental Health’s Business Support Team Business Improvement Programme. 

18



Back Office Redesign and Front Office Optimisation 

Licensing Act 2003 

The Licensing Act 2003 covers regulation of alchohol and entertainment. Currently all 
enquiries are handled through the licensing team however these will migrate to the customer 
contact environment where possible. The Licensing Act deals with a number of partners 
across Norfolk including the Police, Fire, Trading standards and Environmental Health. At the 
time of application the custome is required to submit applications to a all representatives who 
feed back to the issuing authority. Currently around 80% of applications are received without 
all the information, thefore causing issues with all parties. This aspect of the review seeks to 
improve the amount of clean applications and enable information through the customer 
contact teams. 

• All processes within the Licensing Act 2003 (alchohol and entertainment) has been 
mapped and redesigned. This redesign includes interputing legislation and enabling it 
to be presented in a clear concise manner.  

• Processes are currently being configured and designed for the CRM ready migration 
to the Contact Centre and Service Centre. Training is scheduled for the end of 
August. 

• The ICT specifications have been passed to ICT for configuration of Lalpac, the 
public register, self service and the mobile requirement. 

• All internet content has been written and set to live 

• New application guidance has been produced  

• CRM has been configured and tested with training scheduled for 21
st
 October 

Redesign has started of the process for the Gambling Act. 

Business Support Team/Environmental Health 

• This work stream is complete. Realisation of cashable benefits won’t occur until year 
4 due to the protected salary scheme which will be £3,850.59.  

ICT: Platforms and Enablers 

 

• The system is now used for: 
o Taxis 
o Charity collections 
o Temporary Events 
o Personal Licences 

• The next batch of data migration will be for the Licensing Act 2003. The majority of 
data has already been cleansed. 

• The enterprise module for self service, mobile working, e-consultation and public 
registers has been installed and in the early stages of configuration 

19



Finance 

• Taxi fees have been approved through GP and will be out for consultation with drivers 
w/c 1

st
 November. This should recover approx £6k per annum. 

• Income identified through the introuction of speed awareness courses. Currently in 
preperation by Principal Licensing Officer. 

• Income identified through BIIAB training. In preperation between Licensing and 
Communities. 

Issues 

There are a number of issues that have been identified and requrie a decision from a senior 
level to enable the programme to move forward and complete successfully. The issues are 
captured within the action plan of the programme however it would be valuable if BISC was to 
champion these issues to ensure the project moves forward and the benefits realised. 

• There are delays in data migration due to resource issues with the Licensing 
team inhibititing theyre ability to take on full configuration of Lalpac.  

• The programme is based on two factors: minimisation of risk and improving 
the service delivery and also enabling the service to generate additional 
income through alligned fees and other opportunities such as sale of training. 
Once the programme is delivered there is capacity to deliver these however 
due to the delay in the programme relating to the staff issues and the 
timescales to review and consult on new fees,  the organisation needs to 
decide how it will budget next years Lalpac support costs. 

o There is £15k identified through realligned fees 

o £6k has been identified through allignment of taxi fees. 

o Income has been identified through sale of BIIAB training however 
due to resource issues effecting the core Licensing team this 
opportuntiy is not progressing. 

o Commision earnings through Speed Awareness is in discussion with 
Norfolk Police aside to the overall improvement programme. 

• The Business Case refers to the Kent Licensing Partnership which benefits 
from circa £200k per annum savings. This project enables Breckland to be in 
a position to start and promote a similar partnership, either exploiting the 
current ARP model or a new one. This activitity needs an owner at a senior 
level to driver forward this opportunity.  

 

20


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	6 Update on IT Services Contract
	7 Implementation and Formalisation of New Projects Requiring Approval from BISC
	BISC Application Form Template v6 0

	8a Licensing and Business Support
	9 Service Performance
	10b Committee Suite Equipment
	12 Gov Connect Phase 3

